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notice of meeting
The thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Institute of Private Enterprise Development Ltd will be
held on Wednesday, 24th February, 2016 at the Institute’s Head Office, 253 South Road, Bourda,
Georgetown, commencing 10.00 am
AGENDA
1. Chairman’s review of the Institute for the year 2015
2. Receive and consider the Institute’s Accounts and Reports of the Directors and Auditors
    for the year 2015
3. Elect Directors in the place of those retiring by rotation
4. Appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration
5. Any other business of an Annual General Meeting

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

………………………..
Hemant S I Singh
Company Secretary
Registered Office:
253-254 South Road,
Bourda, Georgetown
28th January, 2016
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Not For Profit Entity
Non Governmental Organisation
Institution of National Character

Services:

Business Guidance and Mentoring
Technical Assistance
Training
Business Financing

Training

Products
Book Keeping
Accounting
Marketing
Entrepreneurship
Business Management
Project Management

50%
Agriculture

Business
Financing
30,000 to 750,000 at 12% to 52%

Small Business Loans

Up to 5 Million at 12% to 24%

Medium Business Loans 5 to 20 Million at 12% to 15%
Up to 20 Million at 12% to 36%

Interest rates are on a reducing balance and all loan beneficiaries benefit from life insurance coverage and business counselling.
IPED has a four diamond rating with Microfinance Information Exchange for Transparency. (mixmarket.org funded by IDB)

Major Funds and Projects Managed
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

Service
Since 1986

100,000
Loans
Disbursed

Microfinance loans

Agriculture Loans

30
Years In

USA /Government of Guyana PL Funds-Managed and paid back a sum of
$450 million from 1987 to 2008.
European Investment Bank-Managed and paid backa sum of $200 million
from 1995 to 2015.
Government of Guyana-Poor Rural Communities Support Services Project
(PRCSSP)- Managed and paid back a fund of $426M during 2002 to 2008
Government of Guyana-Poor Rural Enterprise Agricultural Development
(READ) Enterprise Fund and Social Investment Fund-Managed and
Oversee the disbursements of grants for a sum of $180M during 2011 to
2015 on behalf of Ministry of Agriculture.
Government of Guyana-READ Revolving Fund-Currently managing a
revolving fund to benefit small farmers for a sum of $57M on behalf of the
Ministry of Agriculture.
IPED currently has $3.3B in assets, with equity of $3B and a Loan Portfolio
of G$2.2B.
IPED has made an additional $600M available to finance small businesses
in 2016 of which $150M will be dedicated to youths and $300M to agriculture
for small farmers

$30B

Loans Disbursed

97%

Repayment Rate

4,500

Loans Per Year

10,000

Jobs Sustained

70%

of Loans without
Real estate
Collateral

37%

Female Borrowers

90%

Rural Borrowers

12%

Youth

Borrowers

IPED is a Member of the Caribbean Microfinance Alliance, Global Entrepreneurship Network, Private
Sector Commission, Consultative Association of Guyanese Industries and the Small Business Council.
Mabaruma . Port Kaituma . Charity . Anna Regina . Parika . Vreed En Hoop . Georgetown . Rosignol .
New Amsterdam . Port Mourant . Skeldon . Bartica*. Mahdia* . Annai*. Lethem. Linden . (* Sub Offices)

1986 - 2015
The Institute of Private Enterprise Development Limited

REFLECTIONS
ON THE

ORIGINS & HISTORY
BY DR. YESU PERSAUD
CHAIRMAN AND FOUNDER

INTRODUCTION
Guyana as a country suffered immensely under the
yoke of state control and the ideology of Co-operative
Socialism during the 1970s and early 1980s.  The private
sector in the Cooperative Republic was considered
exploiters and the word “profit” was considered sinful.   
The business sector was almost wiped out due to
deliberate Government policies to destroy the business
sector as the Cooperative Sector, in conjunction with the
State Sector was supposed to be the engine to propel
growth.   However, both the State and the Cooperative
Sectors were colossal failures resulting in the near ruin
of the country.
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A few companies weathered the storm due to astute
management by ensuring that the state did not interfere
in the affairs of the company.   There was absolute need
to rekindle the entrepreneurial spirit and immediate
action was necessary to revive the private sector starting
with the small business sector.   This gave birth to my
concept of the Institute of Small Enterprise Development
(ISED).   This name was changed a few years later to
the Institute of Private Enterprise Development (IPED)

30Athnniversary
EARLY DAYS
In September 1985, I discussed my
concept of the “Institute” with my
good friend and colleague, W.G.
Stoll, who hailed it as an inspiration
and promised me full support to get
it off the ground.  A Company limited
by guarantee was to be the starting
point. I decided to ask prominent
business owners and leaders with
access and influence to the then
political directorate to be signatories
to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association, they duly agreed.
Mr. Eric Clarke, Senior Partner of
Clarke and Martin, a leading firm
of Solicitors, a good friend of mine,
had prepared the Memorandum and
Articles of Association free of cost.
Mr Eric Clarke registered ISED as a
Company limited by guarantee and
it was incorporated on 2nd October,
1985.
Management Services Ltd, a
Company in which W. G. Stoll and
Yesu Persaud had an interest,
had done several training courses
for Foundation for International
Training (FIT) a CIDA-funded
Canadian Institution.    I had built
up a close relationship with the
Executive Director, Ranjit Kumar
and the Project Manager, Roger
Griffin.   It was fortuitous that Roger
Griffin was on a visit to Guyana in
October, 1985.    The concept of
the Institute was discussed with
him and he pledged full support for
the “Institute.”    Once the Institute
started business, FIT would finance
the services of two Business

Counsellors.   I subsequently spoke
to the Executive Director of FIT,
Ranjit Kumar, who supported Roger
Griffin’s pledge that in addition FIT
would provide training for Business
Counsellors.   
A month earlier, a Guyanese/
American Lawrence Correia who
was Controller and Project Officer
of Pan American Development
Foundation (PADF), was in Guyana.   
I discussed funding with him but he
wanted a structure similar to the
National Development Foundations
of the OECS which were partly
funded by PADF.   He suggested a
few names as Directors who were
associates of his when he was living
in Guyana. I informed him, in no
uncertain terms, that the structure
he was suggesting, would not work
in Guyana.    These Development
Foundations were static institutions.   
I wanted a dynamic institution that
would grow and prosper, helping
people to help themselves.   
It seemed at the time, that two
institutions would be set up, one
modeled on the OECS National
Development Foundation and the
more dynamic and growth-propelling
one I had in mind.    Since CIDA,
through FIT, had already agreed
to jump start the institution, I called
Byron Blake, Development Director,
Caricom, and discussed the subject
with him and Susan Brown, the First
Secretary of the Canadian High
Commission, Georgetown, who
gave me her unqualified backing.

A meeting was held the following
morning at Miss Brown’s Office.   
Present were, Ms Susan Brown,
Byron Blake, Lawrence Correia and
myself who all said that it would be
a waste of resources to have two
development institutions and that
the resources should be pooled to
form a vibrant institution. Susan
Brown and Byron Blake supported
my concept of the “Institute.”  
Lawrence informed us that the
decision would have to be made
by his Executive Vice President,
Mr. Edward Marasciulo. I left Susan
Brown’s Office confident that I could
convince Mr. Marasciulo to back the
“Institute.”   I wrote Mr. Marasciulo
inviting him to Guyana to see for
himself the need that existed for the
development of entrepreneurs and
the business sector after the eclipse
of Co-operative Socialism.
In late October, 1985, Mr. Edward
Marasciulo,
Executive
Vice
President and Lawrence Correia,
Project Officer and Controller of
PADF, arrived in Guyana.    They
were duly met at the airport and
taken to the Pegasus Hotel.   That
very evening, we started discussions
on the concept of the “Institute.”   
Mr Marasciulo was a lawyer and a
former US Diplomat, and a great
listener.  He only intervened to ask
a question.   

annual report 2015
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ORIGINS & HISTORY

EARLY DAYS cont'd

After receiving the requisite backing
mentioned above, I called a meeting
At the end of the session, he said to with the Board of Directors of the
me, “Yesu, you have convinced me that “Institute.”   I outlined what had been
the Institute would train entrepreneurs done to date including the support of
and create dynamism for rebuilding the President Hoyte and the International
entrepreneurial spirit in the country.    Agencies.   I proposed that we launch
My challenge to you is on the basis of the “Institute” in great style, never seen
one to one.   You need to raise G$1M to before in Guyana, inviting the entire
start so raise G$500,000 and PADF will private sector, diplomats, professionals
match it with G$500,000.”   I replied, “Ed, and Ministers and high officials of the
it’s a deal, I will raise it within 3 months Government and the Leader of the
and that is guaranteed.”  He responded, Opposition to the launching ceremony.   
“you are undoubtedly a man who gets Mr Michael Brassington, Managing
things done and please be assured Director of Guyana Refrigerators
that there is no intention of starting Ltd.   (GRL), was allotted the task
another institution similar to the OECS of being the speaker on incentives,
National Development Foundations.   Mr Lawrence Correia of PADF and
These Institutions have shown very Roger Griffith of FIT, had already
little growth over the years and needs confirmed their willingness to speak
regular injections of new cash.”    We at the launching.    We agreed that I
shook hands and I thanked him for his would chair the launching, outlining
immediate decision and faith in me.   We the background of the project and
then moved to the dining room for dinner. its benefits to the private sector and
Guyana.    The President, Mr. H. D.
I now had the backing of FIT, the CIDA- Hoyte, would give the feature address.
funded Canadian Institution and Pan
American Development Foundation.    The “Institute” was formally launched
The next step was President Desmond at the Pegasus Hotel on 10th January,
Hoyte.  He was very warm to the concept 1986 in the presence of the largest
when it was introduced to him especially number of private and public officials
now that it had Canadian and US support.    and civic organizations ever seen in
Canada was a helpful country to Guyana the country.   The launching went like
and the USA was indispensable for IMF clockwork – all the speakers spoke
and headed the Donor Support Group for glowingly of the need for such an
Guyana, which was instrumental for IMF institution and the benefits that would
and World Bank re-entry and support for accrue to Guyana, helping people to
Guyana.
help themselves by becoming their

6

iped 30th anniversary 1986-2015

own bosses.    The President, H. D.
Hoyte, in his message, expressed
unreservedly that he backed the
Institute and applauded the private
sector for coming up with the concept
and said that the Government would
give all the assistance needed to help
the Institute in its formative stage.   Mr
Brassington, in his presentation, had
asked for tax-free concessions, which
the President promised to support.   
The President graciously pledged to
make IPED exempt from corporation
tax and to exempt all donations to
the Institute from income tax.    The
Government duly honoured this pledge
and regulation 7 of 1986 of the Income
Tax Act was passed on August 14, 1986
by the then Minister of Finance, Hon
Carl B. Greenidge, recognizing IPED as
an Institution of National Character.
At this launch, we received pledges
of donations totaling $163,000 from
professionals, and the private and public
sectors that morning.   In addition, I
had approached a number of the large
companies that were associated with
DDL, including Seagrams (U.K.), Booker
Sugar Co. Ltd, W. Breitenstein of Holland,
West India Trading Canada,Texaco
(W. I.) Ltd, and the Commonwealth
Development Corporation (CDC).    All
these companies contributed liberally to
the cause.   In less than 3 months, the
target of G$500,000 was realized which
was duly matched by PADF in three
tranches.

30Athnniversary
Office accommodation for the Institute
was rented from John Willems at 240
Camp Street, South Cummingsburg,
in February but physical occupation
occurred on 1st April, 1986 with a
staff of one, Jeff Adiken, who was
Messenger,
Clerk,
Counsellor,
Accountant and Manager all rolled
into one.   Staff was increased as the
business progressed.
The Terms and Conditions of IPED
Loan on 1st April, 1986, was that the
entrepreneur must have a vested
interest in the business and knowledge
of the business.   The maximum value
of the loan was $30,000.   The vested
interest could be in the form of fixed
assets, stocks etc.   The rate of interest
was 12% per annum.   The “Institute”
would provide accounting, technical
and managerial training together with
counselling services free of cost.   There
was a screening process introduced to
preclude persons applying for loans
with no intention of repaying.    A
culture had developed in the country
during this time that loans from state
corporations need not be repaid. This
was the reason for the failure of the
Guyana Credit Corporation and the
Small Industries Corporation and
subsequently, Guyana Co-operative
Mortgage Finance Bank and the
Guyana National Co-operative Bank.
The first 5 loans of the Institute were for
the production of soft toys and wooden
carvings valued at $16,544 and by the
end of October, 4 of the 5 loans were

repaid.    At the end of December,
1986, the total Loans approved and
disbursed were 25 amounting to
$734,852.    The Institute had made
a small surplus of $5,951 in its first 9
months of operation.
The Institute is a not for profit and
all surpluses earned are ploughed
back into the Institute for further
development. It was never our intent
to distribute any of the surpluses as
dividends when the Institute started
and we do not foresee changing
this philosophy as we continue to
grow.  Furthermore, I had indicated to
Directors at our second meeting that
they had a moral and social obligation
to give something back to society and
they agreed to give voluntary services
to the Institute free of fees or expenses.
This is still the practice even after 30
years in existence. In addition, they
would pursue the Institute’s interests
whilst overseas.    If the Directors
missed three or four meetings, they
would be asked to retire gracefully and
be replaced by others who could find
the time to be at meetings.   In addition
to attending Board Meetings, the
Finance Sub-Committee of the Board
had to approve the loans submitted
by Management.   This has been the
bedrock of the success of the Institute.
The success of the Institute in its first
9 months of operations had put to
rest the many “Jeremiahs” who had
predicted failure within a few months
after starting up in business.    The

Institute was to go on to be the success
story of the Caribbean and is being
heralded as such by USAID and other
Donor Agencies.
THE PROGRESS WE HAVE MADE
SINCE STARTING UP
Major Sources of Funding and
assistance after we got going
In October, 1986, U.S. PL-480
returned to Guyana, IPED was the first
and only private sector organization to
queue at the U.S. Embassy seeking
to share in the US PL-480 counterpart
funds.    I remember vividly the day I
met the US Ambassador to discuss the
subject that IPED be allocated a part
of the counterpart funds to stimulate
and develop all over again the small
business sector.    My argument was
simple, IPED’s aims and objectives
were to create an entrepreneurial
culture, helping people to help
themselves and in the process, creating
employment, wealth and increasing the
GDP of the nation.   
At the end of the discussion, he assured
me that the Institute would be allotted
15% to 25% of the funds available
and that he would be discussing the
topic with the Minister of Finance and
this became a reality in early 1987.
Approximately US2.3M was drawn
down on this facility between 1987
and 1992. These funds were used to
grow the Institute Loans Portfolio and
was treated as a revolving fund until

annual report 2015
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a settlement of G$450 Million was
repaid to the Government of Guyana in
July 2008. Since then IPED has been
sustaining itself from accumulated
surpluses.
Over the years, loan funds also
came from the Inter-American
Development Bank (IADB) and in
1995, a loan was negotiated with the
European Investment Bank (EIB) for
the businesses that had graduated to
medium-size businesses.    The EIB
Loan for the IPED medium-size loan
sector was the first time in the history of
EIB that a loan was negotiated, signed,
sealed and delivered the same day.   It
still remains a record to this day.   I was
very pleased with myself when I left the
EIB headquarters in Luxembourg that
day. I had every reason to feel “on top
of the world”. On my return home, the
Directors were overwhelmed with the
result and expressed the view that this
could well be an excellent relationship
to build on.
The USAID has provided resources
for institutional strengthening in the
early years which were of tremendous
significance to the growth of the
Institute followed by the IADB.   Help in
different forms was also received from
the British High Commission and the
Canadian High Commission.
The services we provide
Training in the office and the field
is indispensable to the success of
Micro Sector and Small Business
Development.    In the beginning
entrepreneurs received free training in
the areas of business they are engaged
in, in addition to basic book keeping
and the importance of cash flow.   In
the field the loan officers provided
individual counselling to clients on
their monthly supervision visits.   The
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Institute formally established its own
Entrepreneurial Development Centre
(EDC) in 1999 at a building adjoining its
offices in South Road.   The EDC now
offers more formal courses in simple
accounting, costs and expenses,
marketing, principles of business
administration, entrepreneurship and
computer literacy.    Clients can also
enroll in a Certificate Course in Small
Business Management.    The EDC
has extended its wings and also offers
training to corporate clients.
IPED introduced the Micro Loan Window
in 1993 to help the neediest of the needy
in our Society.  The Micro Loan scheme
reaches out to the under-privileged,
unemployed and under-employed
women, youths and other segments
of the Guyanese population who really
want to improve the economic welfare
of themselves and their families.   The
aim and objective of the Micro Loan
Window is the reduction of poverty and
improvement of the living standards of
the poorest of the poor, which would
directly impact positively on the nation’s
development.   The philosophy of IPED
is to help people to help themselves and
to become their own bosses, giving them
the independence and the framework to
think positively about what they would
do for themselves to grow and become
bigger businesses in the future.   Many
of these Micro Businesses have already
graduated to the Small Business status
each employing several persons.
The Micro Loan Window starts at
$30,000 without traditional collateral
increasing progressively to $50,000,
$75,000 and $100,000 dependent on
the success of the micro-entrepreneur.   
The scheme has been an outstanding
success.   The astonishing feature of the
Micro Sector loans is that in excess of
50% are to women, many of them single
mothers, who would have been without
a source of income and had it not been
for the IPED Micro Loan scheme these
poor people would have been without
any source of income for themselves
and their families.

In addition to creating jobs, the Microloan scheme, like the small and medium
size loan schemes, have transformed
the lives of people who have moved
from the bottom of the heap to become
self-supporting members of society.   
In addition to providing funding to
the micro entrepreneurs, the Institute
provides the same free services
as it does to the Small Business
Window of training in managerial,
accounting and technical areas
together with counselling services to
the entrepreneurs.   There is no doubt
in my mind that these services have
helped in no small measure in the
outstanding success story of IPED.
Bumps along the road
The May/June rains of 1997 came
with a vengeance and was prolonged
resulting in floods in several parts of the
country.   This was followed by the El
Nino drought of 1998, the worst in over
a decade.    The weather phenomena
in those two years severely affected
the productive sectors including
IPED thereby, affecting the ability of
entrepreneurs to repay or draw down
new loans.  We were not deterred and
kept faith with the entrepreneurs by
extending periods of repayments and
providing liberally for possible bad
debts.   We were able to weather the
storm and the growth and expansion
of the portfolio continued with great
momentum.
The progress we have made in 30
years
Since its inception in 1986 and to the
end of 2015, IPED has been blazing
the trail of private sector development
by training and funding the Small and
Micro Business Sectors to fuel growth
and development of an economy that
was in tatters during the 20-odd years
of the state-controlled Cooperative
Socialist economy.    IPED stands out
as a brilliant star not only developing
people to improve their economic wellbeing but also in the development
process.

30Athnniversary
Starting from humble beginnings at
rented office in Camp Street, the
Institute today owns its own offices
in South Road, Georgetown, at Port
Mourant, Corentyne and at Cotton
Field in Essequibo, with rented offices
at Rosignol Village, West Bank Berbice,
at Parika, East Bank Essequibo, at
Lethem in Region 9, Linden, Region 10,
Mabaruma and Port Kaituma Region 1,
Corriverton, New Amsterdam, Vreeden-Hoop and Charity.   IPED also has
sub-offices at Bartica, Wakenaam and
North Rupununi.    IPED provides poor
people with access to loans in all ten
Administrative Regions of Guyana from
Crabwood Creek to Port Kaituma to the
Rupununi.
During the last 30 years to 31st
December, 2015, IPED has funded
medium, small and micro entrepreneurs
with over 100,000 loans valued in
excess of $30 Billion at an average
loan size of $205,000 sustaining in
excess of 10,000 jobs annually and
in the process, employing a large
segment of the workforce who would
have remained unemployed and living
in poverty.   Many of these businesses
fell by the wayside but many have
succeeded beyond expectation.   Just
imagine what the unemployment

rate and social problems would have
been in Guyana without IPED’s
contribution.   During 2015, IPED loan
clients generated profits and paid out
wages equivalent to about 2% GDP,
a not insignificant contribution to
the economy.   In addition to helping
people to improve their economic
status, IPED is conscious that to grow
and prosper, it must make a profit and
has made a profit in each of the 30
years it has been in business.    The
profit in 2015 was $170M as compared
to $213M in the preceding year. The
Governments of President H. D. Hoyte,
President Cheddi Jagan, President
Samuel Hinds, President Janet Jagan,
President Bharat Jagdeo, President
Donald Ramotar and President David
Granger have all in turn recognized the
tremendous contribution of IPED to the
national development of Guyana.
Conclusion
Yes, indeed, IPED is very dear to
my heart and I am very proud of its
achievements and accomplishments in
helping people to help themselves and
in the process improving their standard
of living and the creation of national
wealth.   Over the years the Board of
Directors has been giving voluntary

services and their service and sense of
direction have helped in no small way
to the success of the Institute.
Of course, the staff also at all levels have
given service of a highly exceptional
nature; this is not to say that there was
not a few rogues in our midst over the
years who have used the Institute for
their personal aggrandizement but
we have had a few monarchs who
have contributed in ways beyond the
call of duty, to whom we are eternally
indebted.    The Institute has moved
into the 21st Century with confidence
to climb and achieve greater heights
way into the future.    Undoubtedly,
it is an impressive success story of
Guyana and the World and is being
used by USAID as a real success story
that is worthy of emulation by other
developing countries.
All Guyanese should be proud of the
institution as it has undoubtedly served
our people well over the last 30 years
and I am certain the future could be
even brighter provided there is political
stability, which results in confidence
in economic development and in
attraction of investments, leading to
the creation of jobs and the creation of
wealth for all the people of Guyana.

His Excellency President Granger
flanked by Dr. Yesu Persaud
on his left and
Mr. Ramesh Persaud on his right

annual report 2015
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Vision

Improved livelihoods
by building sustainable
micro and small
enterprises

mission

IPED provides business guidance, technical
assistance, training and finance to micro and
small business entrepreneurs enabling them to
build sustainable enterprises.

objectives
To promote a culture of entrepreneurship and to inspire and empower micro and small
business owners to build sustainable enterprises.
To provide timely and adequate financing, technical assistance and business guidance to
Micro and Small business owners to enhance their production potential and capacity to meet
their market demands.
To promote sustainable environmental practices and technologies to micro and small
businesses that will mitigate the risks of harm to our environment.
To build effective partnerships with organizations providing complementary support services
to micro and small businesses.
To provide a work environment where all employees are treated fairly, are adequately
compensated, trained and highly motivated towards the achievement of our vision.

Rossita Cunje
Executive Assistant

staff 
awards:
years of
service

Shaun Persaud - Branch Manager
Elvis Rose - Branch Manager

Rossell Forde Customer Service Agent III
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Phagoo Lall - Security Officer
Brindaban Ramasar - Snr. Business
Counsellor/Field Officer

Elizabeth Bankay - Legal Clerk II
Althea King - Customer Service Agent II
Raghunandan Pancham Snr. Business Counsellor/Field Officer
Ryan Ramsaroop - Legal Clerk II
Oneika Thompson - Cleaner

corporate information
Directors
Dr. Yesu Persaud-Chairman
Mr. Komal Samaroo
Mr. James Morgan
Mr. Laurence Farley
Dr. Ian McDonald
Mrs. Amanda Richards
Dr. Gem Fletcher
Mr. Ramsay Ali
Dr. Leslie Chin
Registered Office
IPED Building
253 South Road,
Bourda, Georgetown, Guyana
Tel: 592-226-4675
Fax: 592-223-7834
Email: iped@ipedgy.com
Website: www.ipedgy.com
branches
Region 1
Mabaruma
Port Kaituma
Region 2
54 Cotton Field
Essequibo Coast
Tel: 592-771-4298
Lot 110 Charity Public Rd.
Essequibo Coast
Tel: 771-4800

Bankers
Demerara Bank Ltd.
Republic Bank Ltd.
Guyana Bank for Trade
& Industry Ltd.
Citizens Bank Guyana Ltd.
Auditors
TSD LAL & CO
Chartered Accountants
77 Brickdam, Stabroek
Georgetown, Guyana

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
from top, LEFT TO RIGHT

Dr. Yesu Persaud

CCH, FCCA, FRSA, FBIM     

Mr. Komal Samaroo AA, FCCA, ACIS     
Dr. Leslie Chin AA, Bsc, Ph.D
Mr. Laurence Farley FBSC, ACEA     
Dr. Ian McDonald AA, MA (Cantab), FRSL     
Mr. James Morgan FLMI, ACS     
Mrs. Amanda Richards AICB
Dr. Gem Fletcher Ph.D     
Mr. Ramsay Ali BBA

Attorneys at Law
Mr. Vidyanand Persaud
& Associates
Demerara
Mr. Murseline Bacchus
Berbice
Mr. Lachmi N. Dindyal
Essequibo

Region 9
Lethem
Rupununi
Tel: 592-772-2229
Region 10
Hand-in-Hand Building
Lot 23 Republic Avenue
Linden
Tel: 592-444-3001

Region 3
278 Pet Shop Street
Parika
East Bank Essequibo
Tel: 592-260-4399
Lot RF 1 Vreed-en-Hoop
West Coast Demerara
Tel: 592-264-3592
Region 4
IPED Building
253 South Road
Bourda,
Georgetown
Tel: 592-226-4675
Region 5
Lot 55 B Rosignol Village
West Bank Berbice
Tel: 592-327-5367
Region 6
1 Port Mourant
Corentyne
Tel: 592-336-6171
Lot 25 Corriverton
Corentyne, Berbice
Tel: 335-3928
Lot 12 Main & Chapel Sts.
New Amsterdam
Tel: 333-5673
592-333-4360
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

I

t has now been 30 years since IPED started its
journey to support free enterprises and rejuvenate
the spirit of entrepreneurship that became nonexistent in Guyana after the State’s experimentation with
cooperative socialism during the period of the 1970s and
80s. Our mission has been partially accomplished during
this time even though the spirit of entrepreneurship
has been rejuvenated and private enterprises continue
to grow and prosper. However, there are lots of room
for improvement in the enabling environment that will
contribute to a greater unleashing of the innovation and
potential of Guyanese Entrepreneurs.
We are proud of our history and to the contribution
towards the development of Guyana through the
continued support of more than 4,000 enterprises that
sustain approximately 10,000 jobs on an annual basis.
During our thirty years of existence, we have disbursed
in excess of 100,000 loans to micro and small enterprises
for a value of more than GY$30 billion while we continue
to be sustainable as a development company. This is no
insignificant contribution in a country with a population of
less than 780,000 people.

I wish to reiterate that the achievements and work of
IPED are all for the benefit of the people we serve
who are the poor and disadvantaged in society. IPED
is a nongovernmental, not for profit organization with a
development mandate that practices good governance
and has a vision to improve the livelihoods of micro and
small entrepreneurs by helping them to build sustainable
enterprises.   
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30Athnniversary
The year 2015 was a challenging year for IPED and its
beneficiaries. The state of the economy and the historical
changes in the political environment have caused many
entrepreneurs to take a conservative approach in their
investments as they observe and digest the developments
around them and the potential implications on the future
of their enterprises.
During the year 2015 IPED processed 4,086 loans
compared to 5,472 in 2014 a decline of 1,386 applications.
To total value of loan applications processed was G$1.8B
compared to G$3.1B in 2014 a decline of G$1.3B. The
lower level of activity resulted in our gross loans portfolio
declining from G$2.8B in 2014 to G$2.2B in 2015. We
have also experienced a deterioration in our arrears
as portfolio at risk more than 30 days due is 26% at
December 2015 compared to 17% at December 2014.
Despite the high arrears we were only required to
make an impairment provision of G$89M or 15% of the
portfolio at risk more than 30 days at December 31, 2015
compared to a provision of G$59M or 12% of portfolio at
risk at December 31, 2014. The remaining amounts have
adequate collateral coverage.  
During the year 2015, of the total applications processed
37% were for female beneficiaries, 12% were youths or
persons below age 30 and 75% of the applicants did not
require real estate to access the finance. Approximately
50% of applicants were within the Agriculture Sector as
90% were from rural communities. These are consistent
with the trends of prior years.
In addition to our financial support for micro and small
businesses, the Entrepreneurial Development Centre
provided training to 296 students in 2015 compared to
376 in 2014 for the Institute of Commercial Management,
UK.

IPED financial position continues to be strong and
adequate to support its sustainability in the medium to
long term. The total assets of the company was G$3.308B
at the end of 2015 compared to G$3.576B at the end of
2014. The decline is mainly as a result of loan payables
being reduced by G$364M. This was possible because
of the improved cash flows due to the lower demand
for credit experienced in the year. The total liabilities
of G$258M represents 8% of total assets at December
2015 compared to G$724M or 20% of total assets at
December 2015. This is an indication of low financial risk.   
The financial performance is a reflection of the challenges
encountered in the year. The total interest income
declined by G$41M from G$560M in 2014 to reach
G$519M in 2015 while investment and other income
increased by G$13M from G$16M in 2014 to G$29M
in 2015. The total financial and operating expense was
G$459M in 2015 compared to G$463M in the prior year.
This resulted in a surplus before comprehensive income
of G$170M in 2015 compared to G$214M in 2014. All
of these surpluses will be reinvested to increase our
outreach to beneficiaries as has been the practice for the
last 30 years.
Despite the challenges experienced in the year, the
overall performance IPED was satisfactory. For this, I
am grateful for the efforts of the staff, management and
board of directors. Their continued belief in the mission
and vision of IPED makes a significant impact on the lives
of the beneficiaries. I wish to express sincere thanks to all
of them for their contributions to the development of IPED
for the last 30 years.
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financial summary

Total Assets

net loans value

3.576

2.742

3.308

3.343

equity

2.528
2.193

2.846
2.426

2.644

2.150
2.137

1.746

3.050

2.355

2011		 2012 2013 2014 2015

2011		 2012 2013 2014 2015

2011		 2012 2013 2014 2015

($billions)

($billions)

($billions)

Total liabilities

700

724

income
expense

661

2011		 2012 2013 2014 2015

447

2011

2012

442

2013

2014

2015

return on equity

7.60

9.20
8.30

6.00

($millions)

(%)

Total Assets ($millions)

8.70

140

180

7.50

4.95

135
590

Return on Assets = Surplus/Total Assets

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

380
131

2,742

2015

Return on EQUITY = Surplus/Total EQUITY

loans receivable
other
property, plant & equipment
short term investment
cash at bank

iped 30th anniversary 1986-2015

189

248

6.48

2,150

2011		 2012 2013 2014 2015

170

2011		 2012 2013 2014 2015

($millions)

return on assets (%)

213

177

359

307

($Millions)

6.90

217

524

298

258

231

612

590

475

288

7.30

surplus

INCOME/EXPENSE

492

14

2.852

2014
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chairman's report
financial summary cont'd

social performance
number of jobs created/
sustained

value of loans
disbursed ($millions)

number of loans granted
5,472
5,002

9,974

5,107

4,814

3,141

4,086

2,716
2,399

10,342
9,628

9,489
7,754

2,661
1,852

2011		 2012 2013 2014 2015

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

2015

gender - number of loans

value of loans ($millions)

3,235 3,383
2,591

2,089

1,872

2,381

2,096

38%

1,421

1,495
62%

male

female

male

2015

male

4,887

2,419
1,729

rural

241
urban

41-50

51-60

NUMBER OF LOANS BY
COLLATERAL TYPe

891

3,911

3,056

1,214

3,617

1,927

1,637
28

36

371

301
31-40

2015

Rural
urban

307

1,023

967

1,147

1,121

1,285

44
26-30

2014

123
2013

1,811

1,674
1,404
1,022

1,346
456

320

375

273

220

157

2013

2014

VALUE OF LOANS BY
COLLATERAL TYPE ($millions)

number of loans by age

18-25

202

2013

1,729

2013

89%

Rural
urban

1,495

402

2014

2013

2015

2,939

11%

585

2014

VALUE OF LOANS BY GEOGRAPHICAL
AREA ($millions)

3,684

614

432

female

2013

2015

NUMBER OF LOANS BY GEOGRAPHICAL
AREA

4,493

female

1,490

2014

961

2013

761

565

61-70	Above71

2013

2014

2015

real estate

2013

2014

2015

non-real estate
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ramesh Persaud (C),
Chief Executive Officer

Jagdesh Haripershad (L), Finance Manager
and Tshanna Dainty-Accountant

16

Hemant S. Indar Singh
Company Secretary/Legal Manager

Yogieraj Das, Credit Manager
(Ret'd 2016)

Chavez Branche (Centre)
Chief Internal Auditor

Robert Williams (R),
Divisional Credit Manager

Gordon Trim
Branch Manager (Ret'd 2016)

Dhanpall Birbal (R),
Divisional Credit Manager
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Vishnu Harpaul (L),
Branch Manager, Essequibo

Shaun Persaud (L),
Branch Manager, Berbice

Kaimlall Chattergoon (R),
Branch Manager, East Coast Dem

Curtis Buckley (R)
Snr. Credit Officer, Lethem

Garrett Ward (L),
Branch Manager, Parika

Elvis Rose (R),
Branch Manager, Rosignol

Prasanna Kumar Muthu (L),
Branch Manager, Hinterland

Deborah Austin (L)
Branch Manager - East Bank Dem.

Hilton Lord (R), Snr. Business
Counsellor/Field Officer, Linden
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clients awards 2015
BEST MICRO ENTERPRISE PROJECT
Mansram Ramsarran - Construction
24 D’Edward Village, West Bank Berbice

BEST SMALL ENTERPRISE PROJECT

Mahendra Sukhoo - Duck Rearing
13 Section B, No 75 Village, Corentyne, Berbice

BEST MEDIUM ENTERPRISE PROJECT
Dindial & Sheline Narine - Trading
62 Richmond, Essequibo Coast

BEST MANAGED PROJECT

Puran Madho - Distribution, Food & Household
72 Public Road, Soesdyke, East Bank Demerara

BEST AGRICULTURAL PROJECT

Hemchandra Persaud - Rice cultivation
No 59 Village, Corentyne, Berbice

BEST WOMAN ENTREPRENEUR

Denise Greenidge - Distribution Services
404 Mango Lane, East Ruimveldt, Georgetown

BEST MANUFACTURING PROJECT

Ganesh Bhagwandas - Manufacturing of Plastic Bags
D 1 Success, East Coast Demerara

ENTERPRISING MICRO ENTREPRENEURS
Barbara Dougan - Distribution, Food & Household
Canvas City, Wismar, Linden

Paulette Bowen - Vending
1051 Charity New Housing Scheme, Essequibo Coast
Richard Dalana Sanasie - Food Processing
Lot 1657 Tuschen, East Bank Essequibo
Dave Morrison - Leather Craft
75 David Street, Kitty, Georgetown
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loan statistics

2009-2015

Economic
		
2015
2014
2013
Sector
			
Rice

2012

2011

2010

2009		

1177

1556

1,353

1482

1,481

1,432

1,279		

2

9

6

5

8

11

17		

Other Crops

320

410

434

361

381

383

339		

Livestock

413

659

727

785

903

1,154

1,259		

Fishing

43

50

53

70

76

91

82		

Forestry

18

21

27

30

34

38

36		

Sugarcane

Mining
Manufacturing
Construction
Distribution Services
Transportation Services
Rental of Buildings
Other Services
TOTAL

1

8

5

9

6

5

9		

94

206

165

164

212

204

226		

5

-

31

26

29

2

8

1491

1623

1456

1490

1,516

1889

2,106

173

207

144

104

114

96

85		

-

-

3

3

6

1

2		

349

723

703

285

236

143

275		

4,086

5,472

5,107

4,814

5,002

5,449

classification of loan recipients

5,723

2007-2015

CUMMULATIVE

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

Men

2,591

3,383

3,235

1,876

1,807

1,704

1,545

1,349

1,758

Women

1,495

2,089

1,872

1,139

1,217

1,399

1,259

1,103

1,592

-

-

-

1,799

1,978

2,346

2,919

2,632

2,418		

4,086

5,472

5,107

4,814

5,002

5,449

5,723

5,084

5,768

Joint - Men & Women
TOTAL

administrative analysis

2007-2015

SUMMARY RESULT							
OF ACTIVITIES
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009

2008

2007

No. of Loans
Granted
Value of Loans
approved (G$000)

4,086

5,472

5,107

4,814

5,002

5,449

5,723

5,084

5,768

1,852,213 3,141,646 2,660,777 2,716,448 2,399,068

1,936,890

1,746,899

1,482,602

1,427,687

No. of Jobs
Created/Sustained

7,754

10,342

9,489

9,628

9,974

10,140

10,127

8,984

9,926

Average Loan Size
(G$000)

453.3

574.1

521.0

564.3

479.6

355

305.2

291.6

247.5

Administrative									
Cost Per Loan
100,250
70,565
69,303
63,725
58,051
48,675
43,960
41,278
35,206
Average No.
of Jobs Per Loan

1.9

1.9

1.8

2.0

2.0

1.9

1.8

1.8

1.7

Loan Value
Per Job (G$000)

239

304

280

282

240

191

173

165

144
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
The Directors have pleasure in submitting this Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2015.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Institute of Small Enterprise Development Limited was incorporated on 2nd October, 1985 as the Institute  of Small Enterprise
Development Limited a name that was subsequently changed on September 10, 1991 to reflect the current name. IPED commenced
operations on April 1, 1986. The company is established as a not-for-profit organization and its objectives are, but not limited to,
enterprise development through the provision of business guidance, technical assistance, training and finance to micro and small
business entrepreneurs enabling them to build sustainable enterprises.
The Institute was granted Certificate of Continuance as set out in the Articles of Continuance, under Section 339 of the Companies
Act. On the 14th August, 1986, the Institute of Private Enterprise Development was prescribed as an Organisation of National
Character in Guyana under Section 35(1) of the Income Tax Act Chapter 81:01.
PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR
In the year 2015, the Institute processed a total of 4,086 loans valued G$1.8 Billion compared to 5,472 valued G$3.1 Billion in 2014.
The 4,086 loans created/sustained  7,754 jobs.
Income totaled G$612.471 million and expenditure G$442.063 million resulting in a surplus of G$170.275 million for the year
compared with G$213.806 million in the year 2014.
APPLICATION OF SURPLUS
Net surplus for the year 2015 was G$170.408 million and this was transferred to the accumulated surplus which totaled G$2.793
billion at the end of 2015.
CREDIT PROGRAMMES
In the year 2015, the Institute operated three Credit Windows, the micro, small and medium geared to meet the needs of the micro,
small and medium entrepreneurs.
The Institute continued its Micro Boost Loan Facility which was launched in April, 2013
ENTREPRENEURIAL DEVELOPMENT
The Entrepreneurial Development Centre continued to pursue its mission of enhancing the chances of business success through
training, education and development. Its partnership with the Institute of Commercial Management in the United Kingdom proved
to be very critical to career and professional development.
In 2015, the Centre provided training to 296 students for the Institute of Commercial Management, UK
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year 2015, there were nine (9) Directors on the Board.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Dr. Yesu Persaud
Mr. Komal Samaroo
Dr. Ian Mc Donald
Mr. Laurence Farley
Mr. James Morgan
Mrs. Amanda Richards
Dr. Gem Fletcher
Dr. Leslie Chin
Mr. Ramsay Ali

Pursuant to the Company’s By Laws, the following Directors retire by rotation and are eligible for re-election:
1.
2.
3.

Mrs. Amanda Richards
Dr. Ian McDonald
Mr. James Morgan

AUDITORS
The retiring Auditors, Messrs TSD LAL & CO. have intimated their willingness to be re-appointed.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' report
TO THE MEMBERS OF
INSTITUTE OF PRIVATE ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Institute of Private Enterprise Development Limited which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the statement of income and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 22 to 55.
Directors’/Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors/ Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects of the financial position of
Institute of Private Enterprise Development Limited as at 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 1991.

TSD LAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
January 20, 2016
77 Brickdam
Stabroek, Georgetown
Guyana
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STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2015

			
2015
2014
		Notes
G$
G$
							
							
Interest income			
573,276,438
628,582,486
Interest expense			
21,206,736
28,560,070
						
Net interest income			
552,069,702
600,022,416
					
Investment income		
5
26,467,875
11,453,731
Other income		
6
33,934,134
49,493,420
						
Net interest and other income			
612,471,711
660,969,567
Employment cost		
7a
227,093,937
203,350,491
Loan impairment			
32,573,378
61,031,540
Premises and equipment			
49,984,435
41,463,913
Other operating costs			
132,544,963
141,317,381
						
			
442,196,713
447,163,325
Surplus of revenue over expenditure		

7

170,274,998

213,806,242

					

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements."
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statement of OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2015

			
2015
		Notes
G$
							
							
Surplus of revenue over expenditure		
7
170,274,998

2014
G$
213,806,242

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:						
					
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to surplus or deficit:					
Remeasurement of provision for employee benefits			
27,513,000
(5,192,000)
						
Other comprehensive income/(deficit)			
27,513,000
(5,192,000)
						
Total Comprehensive Income for the year			
197,787,998
208,614,242

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements."
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statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

			
			
			
								
Balance at 1 January 2014		

Capital
donations
G$

Accumulated		
surplus
Total
G$
G$

256,497,733

2,387,064,004

2,643,561,737

Surplus for the year			

213,806,242

213,806,242

Remeasurement of provision for employee benefits			

(5,192,000)

(5,192,000)

Total recognised income for the year		
208,614,242
208,614,242
						
Balance at 31 December 2014		
256,497,733
2,595,678,246
2,852,175,979
Surplus for the year		

-

170,274,998

170,274,998

Remeasurement of provision for employee benefits			

27,513,000

27,513,000

Total recognised income for the year		
197,787,998
197,787,998
						
Balance at 31 December 2015		
256,497,733
2,793,466,244
3,049,963,977

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements."
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As At 31 December 2015

			
ASSETS		Notes

2015
G$

2014
G$

Cash resources		
9
515,844,910
147,497,687
Investments		
10
321,871,049
363,106,656
Loans receivable		
11
2,150,363,519 2,742,146,124
Property, plant and equipment		
12
176,493,669
183,885,767
Intangible asset		
13
3,593,287
5,047,371
Defined benefit asset		
8
101,142,000
73,762,000
Other assets		
14
38,995,485
60,935,476
						
TOTAL ASSETS			
3,308,303,919 3,576,381,081
			
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES						
			
EQUITY						
Capital donations		
15
256,497,733
256,497,733
Accumulated surplus			
2,793,466,244 2,595,678,246
						
			
3,049,963,977 2,852,175,979
LIABILITIES						
Loans payable		
16
10,506,777
374,439,987
Other liabilities		
17
247,833,165
349,765,115
						
			
258,339,942
724,205,102
			
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
3,308,303,919 3,576,381,081

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on January 20, 2016.			
On Behalf of the Board

......……...........……………………
Dr Yesu Persaud
Chairman

......……...........……………………
Mr James Morgan
Director

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements."
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2015

		
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
		
Surplus of revenue over expenditure
170,274,998
213,806,242

Adjustments for:				
		
Depreciation
32,496,750
26,093,106
Amortisation
1,454,084
733,510
Remeasurement of provision for employee benefits
27,513,000
(5,192,000)
Profit on sale of motor vehicles
(700,000)
(2,518,352)
		
Operating surplus before working capital changes
231,038,832
232,922,506
Movements in:				
			
Loans receivable
591,782,605
(214,288,312)
Other receivables and prepayments
22,737,305
(6,361,928)
Inventory
(797,314)
64,233
Other payables and accruals
(66,909,080)
8,625,083
Defined benefit asset
(27,380,000)
959,000
		
Net cash provided by operating activities
750,472,348
21,920,582
		
INVESTING ACTIVITIES				
			
Decrease/(increase) in investments
41,235,607
(11,379,627)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(25,245,150)
(67,106,793)
Purchase of intangible asset
(5,249,026)
Increase in lease payable
10,903,333
Proceeds on sale of motor vehicles
840,497
5,625,000
				
Net cash provided by/ (used in) investing activities
16,830,954
(67,207,113)
		
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan drawn down
75,000,000
Loan repayments
(363,933,210)
(28,188,741)
		
Net cash provided by/ (used in) financing activities
(363,933,210)
46,811,259
		
Net increase in cash resources
403,370,092
1,524,728
Cash resources at beginning of period
112,474,818
110,950,090
		
Cash resources at end of period
515,844,910
112,474,818
Comprising			
Bank Overdraft
(35,022,869)
Cash resources
515,844,910
147,497,687
					
515,844,910
112,474,818

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements."
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES							
											
The Institute of Private Enterprise Development Ltd (IPED) was incorporated on October 2, 1985 as the Institute
of Small Enterprise Development Ltd, a name that was subsequently changed on September 10, 1991 to reflect
the current name. IPED commenced operations on April 1, 1986. The company is established as a not-for-profit
organization and its objectives are, but not limited to, enterprise development through the provision of business
guidance, technical assistance, training and finance to micro and small business entrepreneurs enabling them to
build sustainable enterprises.
							
2. New and amended standards and interpretations
Effective for the current year end
		
New and Amended Standards
IAS 19 Employee Benefits
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
Available for early adoption for the current year end
		
New and Amended Standards

Effective for annual 		
periods beginning
on or after
1 February 2015
1 February 2015
1 February 2015
Effective for annual 		
periods beginning
on or after

IAS 16 & IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation
1 January 2016
Disclosure Initiative Amendments to IAS 1
1 January 2016
Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
1 July 2016
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
1 January 2018
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments : Classification and Measurement
1 January 2018
and additions for financial liability accounting
The Company has not opted for early adoption.
The standards and amendments that are expected to have a material impact on the Company’s accounting policies
when adopted are explained below.

IFRS 15: Revenue From Contracts With Customers
This standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers as
follows:
- Identify the contract with the customer
- Identify the performance obligations in the contract
- Determine the transaction price
- Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
- Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1)
Amends IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to address perceived impediments to preparers exercising their
judgement in presenting their financial reports.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.

New and revised standards and interpretations - cont’d
Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
Makes amendments to the following standards:
IFRS 5
- Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
IFRS 7
- Financial Instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 9
- Financial Instruments
IAS 34
- Interim Financial Reporting
IFRS 9-Financial instruments
IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permitted. Early
adoption must apply all of the requirements in IFRS 9 at the same time, except for those relating to:
1.

the presentation of fair value gains and losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, the requirements for which an entity may early apply without applying the other
requirements in IFRS 9; and

2.

hedge accounting, for which an entity may choose to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of
IAS 39 instead of the requirements of IFRS 9.
The standard contains specific transitional provisions for:
i.) classification and measurement of financial assets;
ii.) impairment of financial assets; and
iii.) hedge accounting.

The directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application of the amendments and
hence have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.
3.

Summary of significant accounting policies.
(a) Statement of compliance									
											
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 1991.
								
(b) Basis of preparation									
											
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at revalued amounts or fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below.
(c) Revenue and expense recognition										
									
The Institute has adopted a conservative approach and recognizes interest income from loans on a cash basis,
whilst expenses have been recognized on an accrual basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3.

Summary of significant accounting policies – cont’d
						
(d) Foreign currencies									
											
Transactions in currencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated to Guyana dollars at the Cambio rates prevailing on that date or at rates agreed by the Bank of
Guyana. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Gains or losses arising on
retranslation are recognized as revenue or expenditure for the period, except for exchange differences arising on
non-monetary assets and liabilities where changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income.
(e) Borrowing costs									
											
The Institute’s borrowings are for working capital purposes. For this purpose all borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.						
(f) Defined benefit Plan									
											
The Institute participates in a multi-employer defined benefit plan (Demerara Distillers Limited Pension Plan)
for its employees. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period (stated in note 8). The future payments
of employee benefits may differ from the estimated amounts due to deviations from the assumptions used.
(g) Taxation									
											
The Institute being recognized as an organization of national character in Guyana has been granted tax exempt
status under the Income Tax Act. This was passed via regulation no 7 of 1986 of the Income Tax Act on August
14, 1986 by the Minister of Finance. As such taxation and deferred tax are not considered in the preparation of
these financial statements.
(h) Property, plant and equipment									
(i) Property, plant and equipment are held for the use in the supply of services and for administrative purposes
and are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

		
		
		
		
		
		

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight line method at rates sufficient
to write off the cost or valuation of these assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as
follows:												
						
Building				
2%			
Office furniture			
15%			
Fixtures and fittings		
15%			
Office machinery and equipment 20%		
Motor vehicles			
25%			
Computers and software		
25%
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies – cont’d
(h) Property, plant and equipment - cont’d
(ii) Leasehold land held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the company at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payment and the fair value.
Future lease rental is treated as a liability and included in the Statement of Financial Position.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever there is objective evidence to indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The excess of the carrying amount
above the recoverable amount is expensed.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized as revenue or expenditure within the period.
										
(i) Intangible asset									
											
Intangible assets acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is recognized over a straight line basis over their useful lives. The estimated
useful lives and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
								
(j) Inventories									
											
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on the first-in-first-out method.
(k) Provisions									
											
Provisions are recognized when the Institute has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Institute will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.		
The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows.									
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
(l) Investments								
											
Investments are recognized and derecognized on trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs. 					
		
“Investments held to maturity” are carried at amortized cost. Any gain or loss on these investments is recognized
as income or expenditure when the asset is de-recognized or impaired.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies – cont’d
(m) Financial assets
Financial assets held by the Institute are classified into the following specified categories ‘held to maturity
investments; ‘cash resources’; and ‘loans and receivables’ and are stated at amortized cost. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.
(n) Effective interest method									
											
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.							
		
Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for ‘held to maturity’ investment only.				
(o) Loans receivable							
											
Loans to customers that have fixed or determinable payments and which are not quoted in active market, are
classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.
										
Loans receivable are recognized when cash is advanced to borrowers and are derecognized when borrowers
repay their obligations or when written off.
(p) Impairment of financial assets										
										
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.		
									
For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:						
									
- default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
							
- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization.		
-Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower.							
		
-Breach of loan covenants or condition								
-Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position							
		
-Deterioration in the value of the collateral								
-Downgrading of the asset
									
				
For certain categories of financial asset, such as loan receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Institute’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 180 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.		
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies – cont’d
(p) Impairment of financial assets - cont’d		
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of loans receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a loan receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in statement of income.				
												
In a subsequent period, if the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.
(q) Impairment of financial assets									
At the end of each reporting period, the Institute reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Institute estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in statement of income, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
									
(r) Derecognition of Financial assets									
The Institute derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Institute neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Institute recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Institute retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Institute continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
(s) Financial liabilities									
											
The Institute's financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.
											
(t) Classification as debt or equity										
								
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.				
									
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs.
											
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.			

32

iped 30th anniversary 1986-2015

30Athnniversary
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3.

Summary of significant accounting policies – cont’d
(t) Classification as debt or equity – cont’d									
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
			
The Institute derecognizes financial liabilities when the Institute obligations are discharged cancelled or they
expire.
(u) Cash resources
									
Cash resources are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than investments
or other purposes. These are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with maturity dates of three (3)
months or less.
(v) Business reporting divisions
A business segment is a component of an entity that is engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or a service within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

4.

The Institute’s operations are considered a single business unit.
					
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Institute’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
					
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements:
i)

Impairment losses on loan receivables
On a regular basis, management reviews receivables to assess impairment. Based on information available
certain judgments are made that reflect the Institute’s assessment of several critical factors that can influence
future cash flows.
									
ii) Useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets						
Management reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the
end of each year to determine whether the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
should remain the same.						
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4.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty - cont’d
Key sources of estimation uncertainty - cont’d

5

iii) Defined benefit asset 							
											
The provisions for defined benefit asset are determined by the actuary based on data provided by
management. The computation of the provisions by the actuary assumes that the data provided is not
materially misstated.
					
2015
2014		
G$
G$
INVESTMENT INCOME

Cash resources
1,205,969
1,675,716
Held to maturity investments
25,261,906
9,778,015
					
26,467,875
11,453,731
										
6 OTHER INCOME								
										
Recoveries on loans previously written off
4,222,058
12,126,297
Fees- ICM courses
14,728,910
14,805,664
Others
14,983,166
22,561,459
					
33,934,134
49,493,420
										
										
7. SURPLUS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURE
170,274,998
213,806,242
										
After charging:			
Depreciation and amortisation
33,950,834
26,826,616
Employment cost (a)
227,093,937
203,350,491
Auditors’ remuneration (b)
822,150
783,000
Loan impairment
32,573,378
61,031,540 		
				
		
(a) Employment cost:				
Salaries and wages
132,301,289
123,136,677
Training, welfare and other cost
80,272,525
72,576,252
Pension
14,520,123
7,637,562
					
227,093,937
203,350,491 		
(b) Auditors’ remuneration 				
Audit services
822,150
783,000
					
No remuneration are paid to directors as all of them are required to serve voluntarily.
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DEFINED BENEFIT ASSET				
				
The Institute participates in a defined benefit plan (Demerara Distillers Limited Pension Plan) for its employees. The
contributions are held in trustee administered funds which are separate from the Institute’s resources. 92 (2014- 85)
employees participate in the plan.				
				
During the year, the Institute’s contribution to the scheme was G$ 14,398,000 (2014 -G$13,098,000)			
				
The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were
carried out as at 31 December 2015 by Bacon Woodrow & de Souza Limited. The present valuation of the defined
benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured at 31 December 2015 using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.				
		
		
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
Amounts in the statement of financial position:				
				
Defined benefit obligation
230,074,000
182,802,000
Fair value of plan assets
(331,216,000)
(256,564,000)

		
(101,142,000)
(73,762,000)
Effect of asset ceiling
					
Net defined benefit asset
(101,142,000)
(73,762,000)		
			
Reconciliation of amount recognised in the statement of financial position:				
Movement in Present value of defined benefit obligation			
Defined benefit obligation at start
182,802,000
148,036,000
Service cost
14,799,000
13,045,000
Interest cost
9,291,000
7,388,000
Members’ contributions
5,294,000
4,815,000
Past service cost/(credit)
3,721,000
Re-measurements
Experience adjustments
15,572,000
10,067,000
Benefits paid
(1,405,000)
(549,000)
					
230,074,000
182,802,000
Movement of fair value of plan assets 			
Plan assets at start of year
256,564,000
222,757,000
Expected return on plan assets
13,280,000
11,568,000
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income
43,085,000
4,875,000
Company contributions
14,398,000
13,098,000
Members’ contributions
5,294,000
4,815,000
Benefits paid
(1,405,000)
(549,000)
					
331,216,000
256,564,000
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DEFINED BENEFIT ASSET - cont’d
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
Asset allocation as at 31 December:				
Guyanese and regionally listed equities
135,218,000
101,385,000
Overseas equities (developed markets)
15,534,000
14,887,000
Regional bonds
21,607,000
22,672,000
Developed market bonds
58,391,000
24,000,000
Emerging market bonds
33,412,000
35,359,000
Cash and cash equivalents
67,054,000
46,236,000
Mortgage mutual fund
12,025,000
Total

331,216,000

256,564,000

Expense recognised in statement of income				
Current service cost
14,799,000
13,045,000
Net interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset)
(3,989,000)
(4,180,000)
Past service cost/(credit)
3,721,000
Net pension cost
Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Experience (gains)/losses

14,531,000

8,865,000

(27,513,000)

5,192,000

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
(27,513,000)
5,192,000
					
Reconciliation of opening and closing Statement of Financial Position				
Defined benefit asset at prior year end
(73,762,000)
(74,721,000)
Unrecognised gain charged to retained earnings
Opening defined benefit asset
Net pension cost
14,531,000
8,865,000
Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(27,513,000)
5,192,000
Contributions paid
(14,398,000)
(13,098,000)
Closing defined benefit asset

(101,142,000)
2015
G$

2014
G$

2013
G$

2012
G$

(73,762,000)
2011
G$

Experience History							
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan asset

230,074,000
(331,216,000)

182,802,000
(256,564,000)

148,036,000
(222,757,000)

118,335,000
(190,305,000)

102,763,000
(119,636,000)

Surplus

(101,142,000)

(73,762,000)

(74,721,000)

(71,970,000)

(16,873,000)

Experience adjustment
on plan liabilities
15,572,000
10,067,000
8,283,000
(2,074,000)
(1,674,000)
							
Experience adjustment
on plan assets
43,085,000
4,875,000
7,004,000
51,809,000
2,569,000
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DEFINED BENEFIT ASSET - cont’d

		
		
		
Principal actuarial assumptions used:

2015
Per
annum
%

2014
Per
annum
%

Discount rate
5
5
Rate of salary increases
5
5
Future pension increases
2
2
			
Life expentancy at age 60 for current pensioner in years				
			
Male
18
18
Female
22.5
22.5
				
Life expentancy at age 60 for current members age 40 in years				
			
Male
18.7
18.7
Female
23.4
23.4
			
Sensitivity Analysis				
The impact on profit of changes in the assumptions used

1% pa decrease
$ million

1% pa increase
$ million

Discount rate
57,589,000
45,896,000
Future salary increases
(16,881,000)
(12,885,000)
		
An increase of 1 year in the assumed life expectancies shown above would increase the defined benefit obligation
at 31 December 2015 by $4,365,000.
9

CASH RESOURCES

2015
2014
G$
G$
				
Cash
1,571,000
864,000
At banks
488,965,973
104,340,519
Government of Guyana IFAD project
25,307,937
42,293,168
				
515,844,910
147,497,687

10 INVESTMENTS				
		
(a) Bonds
243,251,613
161,882,619
These are made up as follows:				
			
Held to maturity investments 				
Government bonds
243,251,613
93,459,279
Private entity bonds (unsecured)
68,423,340
					
243,251,613
161,882,619
				
(b) Cash resources
78,619,436
201,224,037
			
Total investments
321,871,049
363,106,656
			
The bonds are assigned to Demerara Bank Limited as collateral for credit facilities.				
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11 LOANS RECEIVABLE
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
					
			
Gross loans
2,239,201,378 2,801,186,383
Less impairment allowance (a)
(88,837,859)
(59,040,259)
					
2,150,363,519 2,742,146,124
			
Non- current loans receivable
1,194,456,776
724,367,840
Current loans receivable
1,044,744,602 2,076,818,543
					
2,239,201,378 2,801,186,383
			
Non-performing loans receivable
162,515,227
195,168,150
Performing loans receivable
2,076,686,151 2,606,018,233
					
2,239,201,378 2,801,186,383
				
(a) Impairment allowances				
Individually assessed impairment				
At 1 January
59,040,259
46,117,487
Provision for the year
32,338,377
61,031,540
Bad debts written off
(2,540,777)
(48,108,768)
Net loans				
88,837,859
59,040,259
					
			
The undiscounted fair value of collateral that the Institute holds relating to loans individually determined to be
impaired at December 31, 2015 amounted to $97m (2014: $112m). The collateral consists of cash, securities and
properties.				
			
Collateral realised			
During the year, the Institute realised collateral amounting to $7,100,000 (2014: $10,977,766.)
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

								
		
Freehold			
Furniture,						
Land and
Leasehold
Motor fixtures and
Office
Computer
Work in
Total
Total
		
buildings
Land
vehicles
fittings
machinery
equipment
Progress
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$
Cost								
									
At 1 January 2015
123,749,114
11,000,000
69,944,620
30,743,415
34,724,995
43,631,324
190,000
313,983,468
329,215,871
Additions
784,000
9,200,000
3,037,919
4,399,244
7,823,987
25,245,150
67,106,793
Reclassification
190,000
(190,000)
(2,424,590)
Disposal
(5,990,000)
(2,026,380)
(882,790)
(8,899,170)
(79,914,606)
									
At 31 December 2015
124,533,114
11,000,000
73,154,620
33,781,334
37,097,859
50,762,521
330,329,448
313,983,468
									
Depreciation								
									
At 1 January 2015
32,551,062
33,656,780
16,317,844
27,408,179
20,163,836
130,097,701
183,237,143
Charge for the year
2,431,622
14,494,641
3,043,352
2,867,063
9,660,072
32,496,750
86,093,106
Write back on disposal
(5,990,000)
(2,026,380)
(742,292)
(8,758,672)
(79,232,548)
									
At 31 December 2015
34,982,684
42,161,421
19,361,196
28,248,862
29,081,616
153,835,779
130,097,701
									
Net book values:								
									
At 31 December 2015
89,550,430
11,000,000
30,993,199
14,420,138
8,848,997
21,680,905
176,493,669
183,885,767
									
At 31 December 2014
91,198,052
11,000,000
36,287,840
14,425,571
7,316,816
23,467,488
190,000
183,885,767
									
Certain land and buildings are held as security for loan from Demerara Bank Limited					

13 INTANGIBLE ASSET
		
Cost

2015
G$

2014
G$

At 1 January
35,818,636
30,569,610
Additions
5,249,026
							
As 31 December
35,818,636
35,818,636
			
Amortisation						
At 1 January
30,771,265
30,037,755
Charge for the year
1,454,084
733,510
						
At 31 December
32,225,349
30,771,265
			
Net book value:					
At 31 December
3,593,287
5,047,371
						
The intangible asset represents a payment for the development and implementation of the Institute’s MIS system and
is being amortised over a period of four years.
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14 OTHER ASSETS
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
				
Related party - GYBT
26,153,252
47,302,581
Prepayments
8,655,988
6,731,718
Inventory
1,102,391
305,077
Others
3,083,854
6,596,100
					
38,995,485
60,935,476
					
15 CAPITAL DONATIONS
		

2015
G$

2014
G$

Donations at 31 December
256,497,733
256,497,733
			
(i) Capital donations received are used to extend credit to micro enterprises for the purpose of providing support
to increase the productivity and employment generation of the micro enterprise sector. These donations are not
repayable to the donor agencies				
			
(ii) The Institute currently has 10 Members all of whom have equal voting rights. Members are not entitled to any
distribution of surpluses. 				
				
16 LOANS PAYABLE		
Amount
2015
2014
			
Committed
G$
G$
							
(i) IADB
SFR
375,000
10,506,777
11,347,319
(ii) EIB
ECU
698,090
7,913,851
(iii) DBL
GYD
335,000,000
355,178,817
							
			
10,506,777
374,439,987
							
Repayments due within one year			
840,543
29,425,431
							
Repayments due within two to five years			
3,362,171
99,561,673
Repayments due after five years			
6,304,062
245,452,883
							
			
9,666,233
345,014,556
						
			
10,506,777
374,439,987
							
(i) Inter-American Development Bank loan of 375,000 Swiss Francs was fully drawn down as at 31 December 1993.
The loan is repayable not later than 16 January 2028 by 60 semi-annual consecutive, and as far as possible equal
installments beginning on 16 July 1998.
Commission of 1% is payable semi annually on 16 January and 16 July each year beginning 6 months after the
disbursement of the loan. The terms of the IADB/IPED agreement require that this loan is repayable in Guyana dollars
at the rate of exchange agreed by the Bank of Guyana at the date of disbursement.
(ii) and (iii) These loans were repaid during the year.					
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17 OTHER LIABILITIES

2015
G$

2014		
G$

		
Bank overdraft
35,022,869 		
EIB loan interest
7,142 		
Accruals
29,742,118
26,621,508 		
Collateral improvement scheme (i)
133,186,417
171,246,207 		
Internal indemnity fund (ii)
13,292,862
14,150,923 		
Government of Guyana IFAD project (iii)
57,369,523
90,062,479 		
Lease Payable (iv)
10,610,000
10,903,333 		
Miscellaneous
3,632,245
1,750,654 		
				
247,833,165
349,765,115
(i) This represents cash collateral held for loans issued and will be refunded when customers repay their loans.

At 1 January
171,246,207
172,237,088 		
Decrease during the year
(38,059,790)
(990,881)		
		
At 31 December
133,186,417
171,246,207 		
		
(ii) The institute has life insurance coverage for all their clients; this coverage is divided into two parts as follows:
(a) Internal (Internal Indemnity Fund): most risk for clients with loan balances below $500,000 is absorbed by
the Institute through this fund.
(b) External: all risk for identifying clients with loan balances above $500,000 is covered by an external Insurance
Company.
		
(iii) This is a revolving fund managed on behalf of the Government of Guyana for the Rural Enterprise and Agricultural
Development Project. Of This $32,061,586 is outstanding as loans and the remainder of $25,307,937 is being
held in the bank.
(iv) LEASE PAYABLE

2015
G$

2014		
G$

(iv) Guyana Lands & Surveys Commission - Lease Payable
10,610,000
10,903,333 		
				
10,610,000
10,903,333

Repayments due within one year
413,333
340,000 		
				
Repayments due within two to five years
880,000
880,000 		
Repayments due after five years
9,316,667
9,683,333 		
		
		
10,196,667
10,563,333 		
		
		
10,610,000
10,903,333
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17 OTHER LIABILITIES - cont’d
(iv) LEASE PAYABLE - cont’d
		This includes two lease agreements between the Institute of Private Enterprise Development Limited and the
Lands and Surveys Commission.
		
		Plot ‘A’, Right Bank Takutu River, Lethem. This lease is a finance lease for 50 years and was entered into on
November 4, 2011 and has an annual rental of GYD 60,000 payable in advance. This rental is due for revision
every 3 years. All other terms and conditions are included in the lease agreement No. A-24060.
		Lot 97, Aranaputa Valley, Left Bank Rupununi River. This lease is a finance lease for 50 years and was entered
into on November 17, 2014 and has an annual rental of GYD 160,000 payable in advance. This rental is due for
revision every 3 years. At the end of the lease term, IPED has the option to renew the lease for a further term of
50 years. All other terms and conditions are included in the lease agreement No. A-25125.			
				
Refer to note 12 for details of the carrying value of the leased assets.
18 RELATED PARTIES 			
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.				
			
Listed below are transactions and balances with related parties:
(i) Compensation for key management personnel			
The company’s key management personnel 6 (2014 - 5)
		

2015
G$

2014
G$

The remuneration paid to key management
personnel during the year was as follows:			

Short term employee benefits
36,586,450
35,165,969
Post-employment benefits
3,846,095
3,534,055
		
		
40,432,545
38,700,024 		
			
(ii) The following balances were held with entities which share common chairmanship and directors.			
		
Trust Company Guyana Limited
Investment account
321,871,049
363,106,656
			
		
Investments fees paid
1,360,343
1,342,717
						
Demerara Bank Limited
Deposit accounts
444,056,728
34,343,744
		
		
Overdraft
(35,022,869)
				
		
Loan
355,178,818
Guyana Youth Business Trust.
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19 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY MEASUREMENT BASIS				
Other Financial				
						
				
Assets and		
			
Loans and
Liabilities at 		
		
Held to Maturity
Receivables
Amortised cost
Total
2015
G$
G$
G$
G$
ASSETS
					
Investment
243,251,613
78,619,436
321,871,049
Loan receivables
2,150,363,519
2,150,363,519
Other receivables and prepayments
37,893,094
37,893,094
Cash resources
515,844,910
515,844,910

Total Assets

243,251,613

2,188,256,613

594,464,346

3,025,972,572

LIABILITIES				
Loans payables
Lease payables
Other payables
Accruals

-

-

10,506,777
10,610,000
207,481,047
29,742,118

10,506,777
10,610,000
207,481,047
29,742,118

Total Liabilities

-

-

258,339,942

258,339,942

					
2014				
Assets				
Investment
161,882,619
Loan receivables
Other receivables and prepayments
Cash resources
-

2,742,146,124
60,630,399
-

201,224,037
147,497,687

363,106,656
2,742,146,124
60,630,399
147,497,687

Total Assets
161,882,619
2,802,776,523
348,721,724
3,313,380,866
						
LIABILITIES				
Loans payables
Lease payables
Other payables
Accruals
Bank Overdraft

-

-

374,439,987
10,903,333
277,217,405
26,621,508
35,022,869

374,439,987
10,903,333
277,217,405
26,621,508
35,022,869

Total Liabilities

-

-

724,205,102

724,205,102
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT									
Objectives 											
											
Risk is inherent in the Institute’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitoring subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is critical to the Institute’s
continued growth and performance. The Institute is exposed to liquidity risk, credit risk, operating risk and market
risk.										
											
Risk management structure											
										
The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks; however, there are separate
independent Sub-Committees responsible for managing and monitoring risk.					
												
Board credit and investment committee
								
											
This committee is comprised of six (6) Non Executive Directors. The committee is responsible for the approval of all
credits and investments over limits delegated to management. The committee also reviews the amount, nature, risk
characteristics and concentration of the Institute’s credit and investment portfolio and ensures appropriate responses
to changing conditions.										
											
Internal audit											
											
Risk management processes throughout the Institute are audited by the internal audit function that examines both
the adequacy of the procedures and the Institute’s compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the
results of all assessments with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Board Audit
Committee.										
											
Risk measurement and reporting systems									
		
The Institute's risks are measured using methods which reflect the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances.										
											
Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Board. These limits reflect
the business strategy and market environment of the Institute as well as the level of risk that the Company is willing
to accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries and geographies.					
											
Information compiled from all the business units is examined and processed in order to analyze, control and identify
risks early. This information which consists of several reports is presented and explained to the Board of Directors
and Board Committees on a monthly basis. 									
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d
(a) Market risk										
											
The Institute’s activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates. The Institute uses interest rate sensitivity and exposure limits to financial instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk. There has been no change in the Institute’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages these risks.							
			
(i) Interest rate sensitivity analysis.									
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for all financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of the
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period was in existence throughout the whole year.A 2.5%
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.			
											
If interest rates had been 2.5% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Institute’s surplus
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would increase/decrease by G$13,158,792 (2014: G$12,172,870).
									
The Institute’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current period mainly due to the increase
in cash at bank and reduction in variable debts instruments.						
										
The institute’s investments are not subject to interest rate sensitivity since they are held to maturity at a
fixed rate of interest.
(ii) Interest rate risk									
									
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Institute is exposed to various risks that are associated with the effects in interest rates.
This impacts directly on its cash flows.								
									
The Institute’s management continually monitors and manages these risks through the use of appropriate
tools and implements relevant strategies to hedge against any adverse effects.				
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d
(a) Market risk - cont’d
Maturing
31-12-2015
		

Within 1 year

Interest				
rate range
On Demand
Due in 3 mths Due 3 - 12 mths
%
G$
G$
G$

2 to 5 years
G$

Over
5 years
G$

Non-interest		
bearing
Total
G$
G$

Assets								
Investments
3%-10%
78,619,436
243,251,613
321,871,049
Loans receivable
8%-40%
195,653,112
286,345,837
562,745,654 1,059,436,794
46,182,122
2,150,363,519
Other receivables
and prepayments		
37,893,094
37,893,094
Cash resources
0%-2%
265,844,910
250,000,000
515,844,910
			
540,117,458
536,345,837
562,745,654 1,059,436,794
289,433,735
37,893,094
3,025,972,572
Liabilities 								
Loans
1%-6%
840,543
3,362,171
6,304,062
10,506,776
Lease 		
10,610,000
10,610,000
Other payables
and accruals 		
- 237,223,165
237,223,165
								
			
840,543
3,362,171
6,304,062 247,833,165
258,339,941
Interest Sensitivity Gap 		

539,276,915

536,345,837

562,745,654

1,056,074,623

283,129,673 		

Maturing
31-12-2014
		

Within 1 year

Interest				
rate range
On Demand
Due in 3 mths Due 3 - 12 mths
%
G$
G$
G$

2 to 5 years
G$

Over Non-interest		
5 years bearing
Total
G$
G$
G$

Assets
Investments
3%-10%
201,224,037
51,287,340
110,595,279
363,106,656
Loans receivable
8%-40%
248,670,597
552,598,221
1,275,549,726
648,892,592
16,434,989
2,742,146,124
Other receivables
and prepayments		
60,630,399
60,630,399
Cash resources
0%-2%
147,497,686
147,497,687
								
			
597,392,320
552,598,221
1,275,549,726
700,179,932
127,030,268
60,630,399
3,313,380,866
Liabilities
Loans
1%-6%
29,425,431
99,561,673
245,452,883
374,439,987
Lease 		
10,903,333
10,903,333
Other payables
and accruals 		
23,008,590
280,830,323
303,838,913
Bank overdraft
7.5%-18%
35,022,869
35,022,869
										
		
87,456,890
280,830,323
99,561,673
245,452,883
10,903,333
724,205,102
										
Interest Sensitivity Gap 		
509,935,431
552,598,221
994,719,403
600,618,259
(118,422,615)
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d
(a) Market risk - cont’d						
			
(iii) Foreign currency risk				
The Institute is exposed to foreign currency risk due to fluctuations in exchange rates on balances that are
denominated in foreign currencies.				
The financial statements at 31 December include the following assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated in the Guyana Dollar equivalent				
			
2015
United States 			
dollars
Euro
		
G
G
Assets
Liabilities

376,021,838
-

-

Net assets
376,021,838
				
2014				
		
Assets
297,181,397
Liabilities
7,913,851
				
Net assets/(liabilities)
297,181,397
(7,913,851)
				
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis				
The following table details the company’s sensitivity to a 2.5% increase and decrease in the Guyana dollar
against balances denominated in foreign currencies.				
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 2.5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number indicates an
increase in surplus/deficit where foreign currencies strengthens 2.5% against the G$ for a 2.5% weakening
of the foreign currencies against G$ there would be an equal and opposite impact on the surplus/deficit,
and the balances below would be negative.				
				
2015
2014
Surplus/(Deficit):
G$
G$
Euro
United States Dollars

9,400,546

(197,846)
7,429,535
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d
		
(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the institute will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its commitments
associated with financial instruments. The Institute manages its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level
of resources in liquid or near liquid form.				
			
The following table shows the distribution of assets and liabilities by maturity:
					
Maturing
		

31-12-2015
						
Within 1 year

				
On Demand
Due in 3 mths
Due 3 - 12 mths
2 to 5 years
G$
G$
G$
G$

Over
5 years
G$

Total
G$

Assets			
Investments
78,619,436
- 243,251,613
321,871,049
Loans receivable
195,653,111
286,345,837
562,745,654 1,059,436,794
46,182,123 2,150,363,519
Other receivables
and prepayments
37,893,094
37,893,094
Cash resources
265,844,910
250,000,000
515,844,910
							
578,010,551
536,345,837
562,745,654 1,059,436,794 289,433,736 3,025,972,572
Liabilities 						
Loans
840,544
3,362,171
6,304,062
10,506,777
Lease
413,333 			
880,000
9,316,667
10,610,000
Other payables
and accruals
237,223,165
237,223,165
							
238,477,042
4,242,171
15,620,729
258,339,942
							
Excess Liquidity
339,533,509
536,345,837
562,745,654 1,055,194,623 273,813,007 2,767,632,630
						
Maturing
31-12-2014
Within 1 year

					
Over
On Demand
Due in 3 mths
Due 3 - 12 mths
2 to 5 years
5 years
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$

Total
G$

Assets						
Investments
201,224,037
51,287,340 110,595,279
363,106,656
Loans receivable
248,670,596
552,598,221
1,275,549,726 648,892,592
16,434,989 2,742,146,124
Other receivables
and prepayments
2,119,413
58,510,986
60,630,399
Cash resources
147,497,687
147,497,687
							
599,511,733
552,598,221
1,334,060,712 700,179,932 127,030,268 3,313,380,866
		
Liabilities 						
Loans
29,425,431
99,561,673 245,452,883
374,439,987
Lease
340,000
880,000
9,683,333
10,903,333
Other payables
and accruals
23,008,590
280,830,323
303,838,913
Bank overdraft
35,022,869 		
35,022,869
							
87,796,890
280,830,323 100,441,673 255,136,216
724,205,102
							
Excess Liquidity
511,714,843
552,598,221
1,053,230,389 599,738,259 (128,105,948) 2,589,175,764
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d								
(c) Credit risk				
The table below shows the Institute’s maximum exposure to credit risk.				
		
Gross maximum exposure:
		

2015
G$

2014
G$

Investments
321,871,049
363,106,656
Loans receivable
2,150,363,519 2,742,146,124
Other receivables
37,893,094
60,630,399
Cash resources
515,844,910
147,497,687
				
Total credit risk exposure
3,025,972,572 3,313,380,866
					
Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represents the current credit
risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.
			
Collateral and other enhancements				
The Institute maintains credit risk exposure within acceptable parameters through the use of collateral as a
risk- mitigation tool for certain types of loans. The amounts and type of collateral required depends on an
assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Our small loan facility uses mortgages on real estate and Bill
of sales on motor vehicles and field equipments while Micro loan facility uses Bill of sales on household assets.
The main types of collateral obtained are cash or securities, charges over real estate properties, inventory and
trade receivables and mortgages over residential properties.				
Management monitors the market value of collateral, request additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy
of the allowance for impairment losses.				
				
It is the Institute’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to
repay the outstanding claim. In general, the Institute does not occupy repossessed properties for business use.
			
Concentration of risk is managed by client/counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector as
detailed in the following:				
(a) Geographical sectors
				
The Institute’s maximum credit exposure, after taking account of credit loss provisions established but
before taking into account any collateral held and other credit enhancements, can be analysed by the
following geographical sectors based on the country of domicile of our counterparties:
		
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
		
		
Guyana
2,705,215,373 3,016,553,787
Regional
100,756,999
79,292,135
International
220,000,200
217,534,944
					
3,025,972,572 3,313,380,866
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d
c)

Credit risk - cont’d				
(b) Industry sectors’						
The following table breaks down the institute’s maximum credit exposure as categorised by the industry
sectors of our counterparties:					
		
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
Government and government bodies
243,251,613
93,459,280
Financial sector
632,357,440
477,775,462
					
875,609,053
571,234,742
Loans Receivable			
Fishing
37,888,453
50,039,702
Hospitality - Food & Beverage
95,804,854
119,560,936
Livestocks
67,420,534
74,129,296
Logging & Lumber
76,896,642
99,572,172
Manufacturing
102,493,065
143,789,474
Other Crops
135,832,937
163,673,729
Others
89,301,684
86,023,177
Poultry
63,253,664
85,441,740
Retail Trade
685,634,725
848,715,229
Rice
664,821,194
860,254,099
Services
102,949,676
132,006,170
Transportation
116,903,950
137,980,659
					
Gross Loans Receivable
2,239,201,378 2,801,186,383
Less: Allowance for impairment
(88,837,869)
(59,040,259)
					
Net Loans Receivable
2,150,363,519 2,742,146,124
					
3,025,972,572 3,313,380,866
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d
c)

Credit risk - cont’d				
(b) Industry sectors’						
Investments- Held to maturity								
								
The debt securities within the Institute's investments security portfolio are exposed to credit risk. The credit
quality of each individual security is internally assessed based on the financial strength, reputation and
market position of the issuing company and the ability of that company to service the debt. The level of
credit risk thus assessed and associated with the security is assigned to a risk premium. These premiums are
defined as follows:								
								
Superior:
Government and Government Guaranteed securities and securities secured by a
letter of comfort from the Government. These securities are considered risk free.
						
								
Desirable:
Corporate securities that are current and being serviced in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the underlying agreements. Issuing company has good financial
strength and reputation.							
								
Acceptable:
Corporate securities that are current and being serviced in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the underlying agreements. Issuing company has fair financial
strength and reputation.							
								
Sub-standard:
These securities are either more than 90 days in arrears but are not considered
impaired, or have been restructured in the past financial year.				
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT-Cont’d									
(c) Credit risk - cont’d

									

The table below illustrates the credit quality of debt security investments as at 31 December:				
					
Superior
Desirable
Acceptable
Sub-standard
Total
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$
Financial Investments:							
Held to maturity					
				
2015
243,251,613
78,619,436
321,871,049
				
2014
93,459,279
269,647,377
363,106,656

					
Loans receivable
			
The credit quality of loans receivable and advances is internally determined from an assessment of the
counterparty based on a combination of factors. These include the level and strength of experience of
management, the track record and level of supervision required for the existing facilities of the company, the
financial and leverage position of the borrower, the estimated continued profitability of the borrower and the
ability of that borrower to service its debts, the stability of the industry within which the company operates and
the competitive advantage held by the borrower in the market. The overall level of risk thus assessed is assigned
a credit score which indicates the overall quality of the borrower. The quality of the borrower that are neither
past due nor impaired are defined as follows:
		
Superior:
These counterparties have strong financial position. Facilities are well secured, and business
has proven track record.			
Desirable:

These counterparties have good financial position. Facilities are reasonably secured, and
underlying business is performing well.			

Acceptable:

These counterparties are of average risk with a fair financial position. Business may be new
or industry may be subject to more volatility, and facilities typically have lower levels of
security.			
		
Sub-standard: Past due or individually impaired.

The table below illustrates the credit quality of debt security investments as at December 31:
					
			

Neither past due
Past due but not impaired
nor impaired			
Impaired
Total
Superior
Desirable
Acceptable
Sub-standard
G$
G$
G$
G$
G$
							
				
2015
1,469,414,296
280,946,303
82,044,327
317,958,593 2,150,363,519
							
2014
2,066,380,439
332,520,490
82,681,693
260,563,502 2,742,146,124
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d
(c) Credit risk - cont’d										
Loan receivables
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
					

Current
1,469,414,296 2,066,380,439
Past due but not impaired
362,990,630
415,202,183
Impaired
317,958,593
260,563,502
					
2,150,363,519 2,742,146,124
			
Ageing of receivables that are past due but not impaired				
2015
2014
		
G$
G$
					
		
1-30 days
177,649,609
180,916,127
31-90 days
103,296,694
108,056,261
91-180 days
82,044,327
126,229,795
Total

362,990,630

415,202,183

While the foregoing is past due they are still considered to be collectible in full.			
Ageing of impaired receivables					
					
Principal
Exposure
Provision
2015
G$
G$
G$
						
91-180 days
29,729,541
27,357,764
10,322,683
181-365 days
125,713,825
30,160,444
18,807,850
over 365 days
162,515,227
59,868,383
59,707,327
						
317,958,593
117,386,591
88,837,860
2014				
91-180 days
36,020,560
29,334,541
7,995,693
180-365 days
88,415,051
35,041,274
19,954,311
over 365 days
136,127,891
31,090,255
31,090,255
						
260,563,502
95,466,070
59,040,259
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - cont’d		
						
(c) Credit risk -cont’d								
			
Cash resources				
			
The credit quality of balances due from other banks is assessed by the bank according to the level of
creditworthiness of the institution. The credit quality of these balances has been analysed into the following
categories:				
			
Superior:
These institutions have been accorded the highest rating, indicating that the institution’s capacity
to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is extremely strong.			
Desirable:

These institutions have been accorded the second-highest rating, indicating that the institution’s
capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is very strong.		

Acceptable:

These institutions have been accorded the third-highest rating, indicating that the institution’s
capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is adequate.			

The table below illustrates the credit quality of cash resources due from banks as at December 31:			
			
		
Superior
Desirable
Acceptable
Total
		
G$
G$
G$
G$
						
2015
515,844,910
515,844,910 		
					
2014
147,497,687
147,497,687 		
						
		
(d) Operational risk								
		
Operational risk is inherent to all business activities and is the potential for financial or reputational loss arising
from inadequate or failed internal controls, operational processes or the systems that support them. It includes
errors, omission, disasters and deliberate acts such as fraud.							
The Institute recognises that such risk can never be entirely eliminated and manages the risk through a
combination of systems and procedures to monitor and document transactions. The Institute’s operational risk
committee oversees this and where appropriate, risk is transferred by the placement of adequate insurance
coverage.								
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21 Fair value of financial instruments								
										
Fair values have been determined as follows:								
										
		
2015
2014		
										
		
Carrying value
Market value
Carrying value
Market value
		
G$
G$
G$
G$
Assets					
Investments
321,871,049
320,194,083
363,106,656
377,800,079
Loans receivables
2,150,363,519
2,150,363,519
2,742,146,124
2,742,146,124
Other receivables
(net of prepayments)
29,237,106
29,237,106
53,898,681
53,898,681
Cash resources
515,844,910
515,844,910
147,497,687
147,497,687
							
3,017,316,584
3,015,639,618
3,306,649,148
3,321,342,571
							
Liabilities						
			
Loans
10,506,777
10,506,777
374,439,987
374,439,987
Lease
10,610,000
10,610,000
10,903,333
10,903,333
Other payables and accruals
237,223,165
237,223,165
303,838,913
303,838,913
Bank Overdraft
35,022,869
35,022,869
							
258,339,942
258,339,942
724,205,102
724,205,102
										
Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value:				
									
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities were determined as follows:					
			
(a) The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets were determined with reference to quoted market prices. Quoted market prices were
obtained from independent market valuators
.							

										
(b) The fair value of loans receivables were determined in accordance with the Institute’s past experience with
delinquent loans and have taken into account probability of defaults.						
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